SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 26, 2018
1:32 p.m

1: 32: 31 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator dick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or Peter M cciche

Senat or Donny O son

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Ken Koelsch, Myor, City and Borough of Juneau; M dgi
Moore, Self, Juneau; Rosemary Hagevig, Vice-President,
First Things First, Juneau; Mrray Wlsh, Self, Juneau;
Chris Dinond, Union Representative, Buil ding Trades,
Juneau; Serene Hutchinson, GCeneral Manager, Juneau Tours,
Juneau; Andy Hughes, Self, Juneau; Joy Baker, Director,
None Port, Juneau; Emly WIlauer, Self, Juneau; Christina
Love, Self, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Lisa von Bargen, Borough Manager, Wangell; John WMbosey,
Bor ough Manager, WMat Su; Lance Johnson, Norton Sound Health
Corporation, Nome; Polly-Beth Odom Daybreak, MatSu; Scott
Bell, University of Al aska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Caroline
Venuti, Kachemak Bay Canpus of UAA, Honer; Kate Finn, Self,
Honer; Becky Hultberg, Alaska State Hospitals and Nursing
Hones, Anchorage; Leslie Jackson, Ketchikan Gateway Borough
Transit, Ketchikan; Dan Johnson, Self, Fairbanks; Chris



Gunder son, Denal i Fam |y Services, Anchorage; Charl es
McKee, Self, Anchorage; Shawn Shotwell, Director, Senior
Disability Services, Comrunity Connections, Anchorage; Tom
Chard, Executive Director, Al aska  Behavi or al Heal t h
Associ ation, Juneau; Bruce Hlton, CFO  Denali Famly
Servi ces, Anchor age; Col een Dushki n, Adm ni strator
Associ ation Alaska Housing Authorities, Anchorage; John
Rodda, Vice-President, Arctic Wnter Ganes, Anchorage;
Kristin Bush, Self, Eagle River; Mke Powers, Foundation
Health Partners, Fairbanks; diff Cook, Eagle Conmunity
Patrol, Eagle River; Qitin Brown, Self, Anchorage; Vanessa
Jusczak, Denali Chanber of Conmerce, Healy; Sarah Leonard,
President, Alaska Travel Industry Association, Anchorage;
Angie Flickinger, Wangell Coop Association, Wangell
Est her Asht on, Tri bal Adm ni strat or, W angel | Coop
Associ ation, Wangell; Rhonda Hubbard, Self, Seward; Jody
Potts, Self, Fairbanks; Karen Kirkpatrick, Self, Meadow
Lakes; Aenn Mller, Fai rbanks North Star Bor ough,
Fai r banks; Nancy Beardsley, Self, Anchorage; Kelly Bender,
Owner, Lazy Oter Charters, VWittier; GCndy Wight, A umi,
UAS Board of Directors, Fairbanks; Jim Hunt, City Manager
Sewar d; M chael Adans, Sel f, Cooper  Landi ng; Janeen
Hutchins, Alaska WIdland Adventures, G rdwod; Charles
Gorman, Self, Anchorage; Chrissy Torsey-Lucero, Finance
Manager, Inter-Island Ferry Authority, Prince of Whales
| sl and; Fernando Salvidor, Alaska Collection, Anchorage;
Cassandra Tsinnie, Soaring Eagle Transit, ulkana; Brenda
Moor e, Chair, Alaska Mental Health Board, Anchorage;
Margaret Anderson, Self, Seward; Paul Honenman, Al aska
Coalition of Comunity Patrols, Anchorage; Ruth Kinere,
Self, Anchorage; Patricia Fisher, Meadow Lakes Comunity
Council, Meadow Lakes; Barry Andres, Housing Director,
Rural Cap, Anchorage; Herman Mrgan, Self, Aniak; Loi
Ricker, Self, Wsilla;, Lee Breinig, Chair, Advisory of
Al cohol and Drug Abuse Board, Anchorage; Mary Nanuwak,
Self, Bethel; Robert Terrazas, Self, Anchorage.

SUMVARY
SB 142 APPROP: CAPI TAL BUDGET

SB 142 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

PUBLI C TESTI MONY

#sb142

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



SENATE BI LL NO. 142

"An Act making appropriations, including capital
appropri ations, suppl erment al appropri ations,
reappropriations, and other appropriations; making
appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date.”

1: 36: 49 PM

APUBLI C TESTI MONY

1: 36: 49 PM

KEN KOELSCH, MAYOR, CITY AND BOROUGH OF JUNEAU, spoke in
favor of the Juneau Access Project. He remarked that the
project was fully-funded, and ready to advance. He pointed
out the dedication of nany Al askans across the state. He
stated that a recent MDowell Survey saw a 15 percent
advant age over those that were opposed to the project. He
remarked that the project wuld provide a Ilong-term
benefit. He stated that the project would connect to other
Al askans, and connect to a road system He stated that it
woul d open new markets for natural resources and other
mar ket s.

1: 37: 54 PM

LISA VON  BARGEN, BOROUGH  MANAGER, WRANCGEL L (via
tel econference), shared that a large area that was |ead-
contam nated. She stated that it was the intent to
originally send the contam nated materials off of the site.
She stated that the solution net regulatory requirenents,
but the area was a prime recreation and tribal area. She
remarked that it was chemcally stabilized, but water
infiltration could introduce the material into the
ecosystem She spoke in support of $5 mllion to nove the
materials offsite. She encouraged the conmittee to add that
funding to the budget.

1: 40: 44 PM

JOHN MOOSEY, BOROUGH MANAGER, MATSU (via tel econference),
spoke in support of the WIlow Library Community Center
upgrade. He stated that the center was a hub of activity
for WIllow. He stated that the center received funding from

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



vari ous organi zations. He stressed that the small inclusion
woul d enhance the library center.

1:41: 46 PM

MDA MOORE, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support of funding
for the tourismindustry. She felt that having a voice for
her business and industry was essential to her success. She
remar ked t hat because of t he part nershi ps W th
organi zations for nmarketing in town increased attention to
her business on an international |evel. She stressed that
the tourism industry needed assistance, and remarked that
all people in the industry benefited fromthat funding. She
remar ked that her business supported approximtely $100, 000
in food in Juneau. She stressed that it was inportant to
tell Alaska's story. She encouraged returning the $3
mllion into the budget.

1:44:13 PM

LANCE JOHNSON, NORTON SOUND HEALTH CORPORATION, NOVE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the 40-year grant
program for substance abuse treatnent programs. He also
spoke in support of the FY 18 Medicaid supplenental
request. He remarked that there was a substance abuse and
opi oid abuse issue across the state. He remarked that there
was a lack of services to address those issues. He stated
that the rural comunity of Nonme only had an outpatient
treatment center. He remarked that inpatient services on
the road systemhad long waiting lists.

1: 45: 59 PM

ROSEMARY HAGEVI G VI CE- PRESI DENT, FIRST TH NGS FI RST,
JUNEAU, spoke in support of the Lynn Canal H ghway and
Juneau Access. She hoped that the funding from the previous
year would be reinstated. She stated that the Juneau Access
Project would decrease the pressure on the Al aska Marine
H ghway System She felt that the project would renove
ferry stops in the Lynn Canal. She announced that the
funding would help with federal nmatch funds.

1:48: 10 PM

POLLY-BETH ODOM  DAYBREAK, MATSU (via teleconference),
testified in support of adding funding for the renainder of
t he Medicaid supplenental FY 18 request. She remarked that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



her organi zation provided services for 110 Al askans with a
staff of 13 people. She shared that she was prepared to |ay
off staff and postpone services until July 1. She renmarked
that she had worked to be fiscally responsible. She stated
that her organization had a grant cut by 30 percent, so she
depended on Medicaid to provide services for the clients
She remarked that she served sone of the nost vul nerable
people in the state.

1: 51: 13 PM

MURRAY WALSH, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the Juneau
Access Project. He stated that there was always a hope to
finally build the road. He felt that the road would benefit
those who could not afford to pay for travel. He also
asserted that the road had environnental benefits.

1:52: 43 PM

SCOIT BELL, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAlI RBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of voiced support for
Uni versity of Alaska (UA) nmaintenance funding. He stressed
that capital budget funding was inportant for maintenance
funding. He stated that the wuniversity was working to
decrease their spending, but stressed the inportance of
mai ntaining the structural integrity of the wuniversity
buil dings and facilities.

1: 54: 56 PM

CHRIS DI MOND, UNI ON  REPRESENTATI VE, BU LDI NG  TRADES,
JUNEAU, spoke in support of the Juneau Access Project. He
remarked that there were many projects that provided
economc viability to the state. He remarked that he had
heard nmany conversations about connecting Juneau to the
rest of the state. He stated that the project would put
many construction workers back to work. He asserted that
there were many workers that were noving to work in other
states.

1: 57: 32 PM

CAROLI NE VENUTI, KACHEMAK BAY CAMPUS OF UAA, HOMVER (via
tel econference), voiced support for University of Al aska
fundi ng. She stated that UA was already facing a $1 nmillion
backl og. She stressed that the noney was needed for
mai nt enance. She remarked that there was an urgent health

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



and safety elenent to namintaining the UA buildings and
facilities. She remarked that the funding would help to
| everage federal funds.

1: 59: 53 PM

SERENE HUTCHI NSON, GENERAL MANAGER, JUNEAU TOURS, JUNEAU,
spoke in support of tourism funding. She stated that her
conpany was not associated with the cruise lines. She
remar ked that Al aska Travel Industry Association (ATIA was
essential to her Dbusiness's nmarketing endeavors. She
remar ked that tourism touches everyone. She stated that her
conpany focused on nmarketing. She stated that the cruise
ship industries would invest in destinations who would
invest in thenselves. She felt that reality television
shoul d not be the only way that people can see Al aska.

2:02:14 PM

KATE FINN, SELF, HOMER (via teleconference), spoke against
SB 198.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that the neeting was for SB 142.

Ms. Finn stated that she was against funding for the |ong-
acting contraception funding. She shared that she had
observed four hours of testinmony, and felt that the bill
was a suboptinmal revision. She stated that those who were
i npl enenting the study would be voluntary, but it was not
outlined in the bill. She stated that the bill did not have
the specifics around the intent. She felt that there would
be litigation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced the funding was in SB 142, but
SB 198 was not before the committee.

2:04:58 PM

BECKY HULTBERG ALASKA STATE HOSPI TALS AND NURSI NG HOVES
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in support of
Medi cai d suppl enmental funding. She understood the concert
over costs, but felt that short funding would cause
significant destruction for the health care system

2: 06: 33 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



LESLIE  JACKSON, KETCHI KAN  GATEWAY BOROUGH  TRANSI T,
KETCH KAN (via teleconference), requesting the state
transit match funding. The funding allowed for matching
grant funds. She stated that the funding would allow for
the purchase of heavy duty buses. She remarked that the
state match would inprove the transit project and prograns.
She stated that tourists and residents utilized the transit
system

2:08: 01 PM

DAN JOHNSON, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in
support of Code Blue funding. He stated that the funding
would be used to match all potential funding sources. He
stated that wthout the funding the state would face
failing infrastructure in the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS). He stated that the collaborative
process included a prioritized list of equipnent requests
that were funding by Code Blue funding and funding from
other sources. He stated that the Code Blue program used
funding from various sources. He stressed that the $500, 000
was essential for |everaging matching funds.

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that Code Blue funding was
included in the current proposal.

2:10: 35 PM

CHRI S GUNDERSON, DENALI FAMLY SERVICES, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of including the funding
for the FY 18 Medicaid supplenental funding. He stated that
he worked with sone children who had been sexually abused.
He remarked that they were the nost vul nerable and the nost
in need of services. He stressed that it was the
responsibility of the state to pay for those services. He
stated that the paynents were done through the Medicaid
program He remarked that w thout Medicaid, there was no
way to pay for the services.

2:12:37 PM

CHARLES MCKEE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
remar ked t hat he had submtted paper wor k about
subsidiaries. He pointed out that he was a part owner of
the legal entities (Al aska).

2:15: 35 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



SHAWN SHOTWELL, DI RECTOR, SENIOR DI SABILITY SERVICES
COVMUNI TY  CONNECTI ONS, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the Medicaid supplenental funding. He
remarked that the elderly in the state relied heavily on
funding, because they were in long-term care. He stated
that community based services providers were already
experiencing financial stress.

2:17: 03 PM

TOM CHARD, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH
ASSCCI ATI ON, JUNEAU (via teleconference), spoke in support
of the Medicaid supplenental funding. He also testified in
support of funding for the substance abuse treatnent grant
program He remarked that behavioral health providers
relied on the funding.

2:18: 53 PM

BRUCE HILTON, CFO DENALI FAMLY SERVICES, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of reinstating funding
for the Medicaid supplenental funding. He remarked that his
organi zation worked wth those who experience childhood
abuse or neglect. He stated that his organization only had
approximately 24 days of cash on hand. He stated that the
cost of services was not substantial.

2:20:45 PM

COLEEN DUSHKI N, ADM NI STRATOR, ASSCCI ATI ON ALASKA HOUSI NG
AUTHORI TIES, ¥ ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
support of housing assistant grant prograns. She stated
that there was a difficult funding environnent. She
remarked that the Alaska Regional Housing Authority
enpl oyed 1400 full-time jobs. She furthered that the
Suppl enent al Housi ng  Devel opnent program provided an
addi tional boost to struggling econom es across the state.
She stated that the program provided housing assistance and
i nproved accessibility in their homes. She stated that the
weat heri zation program provided cost-effective savings to
reduce operating costs and inproved residential health.

2:23: 31 PM

JOHN RODDA, VI CE- PRESI DENT, ARCTIC W NTER GAMES, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), spoke in support of the $37,500 for

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



the Departnent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnment (DCCED) Arctic Wnter Ganes.

2:24:38 PM
AT EASE

2:25:47 PM
RECONVENED

2:26:33 PM

M. Rodda shared the interlocking links of the Arctic
Wnter Ganes. He stated that the games had nmany comrunities
in Alaska. He felt that the games would provide youth with
experience with other countries and cultures. He stressed
that the games provided integrity and access to personal
and community devel opnent. He stated that Al aska was one of
the founding partners of the Arctic Wnter Ganes. He stated
that Alaska was the only one in the ganmes who did not
provi de annual funding fromtheir governnent.

2:29: 32 PM

KRI STIN BUSH, SELF, EAGLE RIVER (via tel econference), spoke
in support of funding for community patrol. She felt that
crime had increased since the passage of previ ous
| egislation SB 91. She felt that the $500,000 could be used
for community patrol. She stated that the patrol would nake
crimnals think twice before entering areas with comunity
patrol. She felt that there was frivolous funding |ike the
Vitam n D Study.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that the vitamn D fiend was
not in the current budget.

2:32: 02 PM

M KE POAERS, FOUNDATION HEALTH PARTNERS, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of reinstating the
suppl emental Medicaid funding. He remarked that the care
providers in Fairbanks had a mssion to accept Medicaid
funding. He remarked that there was a strong Native
partnership within his organization. He stated that there
was a conpact with tribal health organi zations that was the
right thing for the state to provide 100 percent of health
care coverage. He felt that tinely Medicaid paynents woul d
allow for patients to continue to receive treatnent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



2:34: 44 PM

CLIFF COOX, EAGLE COWUNITY PATROL, EAGE RIVER (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the community patrol
funding. He stated that the funding would be a cost-
effective investnment to help fight crinme. He stated that
there were three volunteers who had ©patrolled the
comunity. He added that he had also used nuch of his own
nmoney to help assist in the patrol. He renmarked that there
was a hope to get nore equipnent, and felt that volunteers
should not pay conpletely out of pocket. He renarked that
there were many reports of theft and burglary. He renarked
that the volunteer patrol was the first to call 9-1-1 at
the sound of gun shots. He furthered that there were
observations and reports of suspicious activity.

2:38: 09 PM

QU TIN BROWN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
in support of funding for tourism marketing. He stressed
that not funding tourism funding was |ike "renoving a
[inb." He shared the benefits of tourismto the state. He
remarked that each visitor to the state spends an average
of $1000 each. He stressed that many jobs were directly
related to tourism

2:40: 37 PM

VANESSA JUSCZAK, DENALI CHAMBER OF COWERCE, HEALY (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for
tourism nmarketing. She felt that the word of nouth hel ped
tourism but stressed that the states that had decreased
their tourismfunding saw a reduction in tourism

2:41:45 PM

Co- Chair WMacKi nnon announced that anyone who signed up
prior to 2:45pm woul d be heard. Sign-ups would cease after
2: 45.

2:42: 15 PM

SARAH LEONARD, PRESI DENT, ALASKA TRAVEL | NDUSTRY
ASSCCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding for tourism marketing. She stated that
it was essential to the state's tourismindustry.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



ANG E FLI CKI NGER, WRANGELL COOP ASSOCI ATI ON, WRANGELL (via
t el econference), spoke in support of funding for the clean
up of the oil spill. She stated that the funding would help
to keep the chemcals from contam nating the water system
She stated that there was a significant decline in animals
near the watershed.

2:45: 18 PM

ESTHER ASHTON, TRI BAL ADM NI STRATOR, WRANGEL L COooP
ASSCCI ATI ON, WRANGELL (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the junk yard clean up in Wangell. She stated
that the junk yard was in a residential area and across the
street from the ocean. She remarked that the community was

attenpting to clean up the lead contam nated soil. She
shared that Departnment of Environnmental Conservation (DEC)
would nove the soil to a lake, with the probability of

contam nation to the ecosystem

2:47:30 PM

RHONDA HUBBARD, SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference), recalled
funding for the Jesse Lee Honme from 2012, which had not
been given to Seward. She stated that there was $1 mllion
whi ch should be postponed to the next budget cycle. She
felt that Seward would address those funds in the next
budget cycle. She remarked that Seward should be allowed to
use those funds.

2:49: 52 PM

JODY POITS, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding for statewide 9-1-1 funding. She
remarked that there was a lack of public safety services in
rural areas of the state. She stated that one in four
people in the state did not have access to 9-1-1 dispatch
She recalled that she did not grow up with access to
di spatch. She stressed that the lack of 9-1-1 dispatch was
very frightening. She was aware of the public safety crises
in rural Al aska, because of the lack of resources. She
stressed that there were sonme people that did not know the
ot her nunbers to reach dispatch

Co- Chair MacKinnon stated that the 9-1-1 request in the

governor's budget did not expand services, but solved
redundanci es.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



2:53:29 PM

KAREN KI RKPATRI CK, SELF, MEADOW LAKES (via tel econference),
spoke in support of funding for comunity patrol. She
stated that the volunteers were already proven effective in
hel ping to deter crime. She remarked that the Retired State
Troopers Association was already assisting in volunteer
comunity patrol. She stated that the current volunteers
were using their own noney and many were not physically
abl e and on a fixed incone.

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that there were approximtely
thirty people still waiting to testify.

2:56: 14 PM

GLENN M LLER, FAI RBANKS NORTHSTAR BOROUGH, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of $1 mnmillion in
community and state match funds. He stated that the borough
transit system had received noney annually, and used to
provide additional hours of public transit services. He
stated that many used the system for various reasons. He
stated that the state match funding was essential, because
it was used as |everage for federal dollars. He stated that
the age group of the riders ranged from grade school
students to seniors. He stated that seniors were the
| argest popul ation who utilized the public transit system

2:58: 56 PM

NANCY BEARDSLEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of funding for comunity patrol. She
stated that many of the volunteers on comrunity patrol had
caught crimnals. She felt that the noney would pay for
ways to identify the patrol. She remarked that crimnals
were getting good at committing crine.

3:00: 20 PM

KELLY BENDER, OWER, LAZY OITER CHARTERS, WH TTIER (via
tel econference), testified in support of reinstating the $3
million for tourism marketing. She remarked that the |ack
of funding from the year prior already had a detrinenta
effect on the tourism in the state. She remarked that
tourism marketing efforts was essential to maintaining a
strong place in Al aska' s econony.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



Co- Chai r MacKi nnon handed the gavel to Vice-Chair Bishop

3:02: 35 PM

CINDY WRI GHT, ALUWNI, UAS BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), spoke in support of $3 mllion to
address the UA nmaintenance needs. She stated that her
famly visits the canpus daily for classes, neetings, and
events. She stated that all the facilities and buil dings
were essential to the comunity. She stated that state
capital funding was essential to maintaining the canpuses
and facilities.

3:04: 30 PM

JI'M  HUNT, CITY MANAGER, SEWARD (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Jesse Lee Hone. He
stated that the building was an environnental hazard. He
hoped that the noney could be reappropriated to the Cty of
Sewar d.

3:05:41 PM

M CHAEL ADAMS, SELF, COOPER LANDI NG (via teleconference)
testified in support of $3 mllion for tourism nmarketing.
He stressed that the state's econony relied heavily on
tourism He felt that it was inportant to invest in one of
Al aska's strongest industries. He did not believe that
there was any business who did not benefit fromtourism

3:07: 04 PM

JANEEN HUTCHI NS, ALASKA W LDLAND ADVENTURES, G RDWOOD (vi a
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for tourism
mar keti ng. She stated that she had many enpl oyees. She felt
that it was frustrating that the loss of funding for
mar keting would put the health of the workers in the
industry and the public coffers at risk. She stated that a
strong tourism econony required a strong tourism marketing
pr ogram She stated that prior funding for tourism
mar keting saw an increase in inquiries and visitors.

3:09:40 PM

CHARLES GORMAN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke
in support of funding to expand substance abuse treatnent

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



to address the opioid crisis and reduce crimnal activity.
He felt that the funding would provide mnmany essential
treatnent. He stated that he was on the Advisory Board for
Al cohol and Substance Abuse. He remarked that Barrow did
not have a detox facility and no treatnent centers. He
remarked that he recently celebrated 12 years of sobriety.
He stated that his life had changed because of the
prograns, and he wanted to help others who were victins of
t hose subst ances.

3:12: 04 PM

CHRI SSY TORSEY- LUCERO, FI NANCE MANACER, | NTER-1SLAND FERRY
AUTHORITY, PRINCE OF WHALES |ISLAND (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the funding for transit funding match
grant. She stated that the Inter-Island Ferry Authority was
an econom c engine in Southeast Al aska. She remarked that
it was essential for residents and tourism She stood in
alliance with other public transit entities who benefit
from the funds, who may not have been able to testify. She
shared some findings about the ferry.

3:15: 05 PM

FERNANDO  SALVI DOR, ALASKA  COLLECTI QN, ANCHORACGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for tourism
mar keting. He stated that he enployed many people in rura
communities. He stressed that his business worked wth nmany
venders. He stressed that tourism has a strong inpact on
the state's econonmy. He urged the conmttee to reinstate
the $3 million for tourism marketing.

3:17:14 PM

CASSANDRA TSINNIE, SOARING EAGLE TRANSIT, GULKANA (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for the
transit system She shared that the system provided |oca

j obs.

3:18: 28 PM

BRENDA MOORE, CHAIR, ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH BOARD, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), spoke in support of funding for
nmental health services. She wurged support of the $18
mllion to address the opioid crisis and related crimna

activity. She shared sonme statistics related to heroin. She
al so spoke in support of the $10 nmillion funding for acute

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



nmental health needs. She felt that investing in behaviora
health progranms would increase resiliency in conmunities
and reduce crine.

3:22: 04 PM

ANDY HUGHES, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the Juneau
Access Project. He shared that he had worked in devel oping
the project over many years wth the Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT/PF). He stressed
that there was always a desire to have a road connection
bet ween Juneau and Skagway. He felt that it was inportant
to tie Juneau to the road system He spoke in support of
funding for treatnment in the jail system He also spoke in
support of funding the Inter-lIsland Ferry System in Prince
of Wal es.

3:25:20 PM

MARGARET ANDERSON, SELF, SEWARD (via tel econference), spoke
in support of keeping the funds for the Jesse Lee Honme, so
the City of Seward could determ ne the proper use of those
f unds. She felt that past allocations were not in
conpliance with the grant requirenent.

Senat or M cci che announced that he m ssed her Saturday.
Ms. Anderson echoed Senator M cciche's sentinent.

3:27: 00 PM

PAUL HONEMAN, ALASKA COALITION OF COWUNTY PATROLS

ANCHORAGCE (vi a tel econference), spoke in support of funding
for community patrols. He understood that the Ilegislature
was in a difficult position to determ ning the budget for
the state. He remarked that often comunity patrols knew
t he nei ghborhoods better than the police patrols. He stated
that the comunity patrols were all volunteer using their
own noney to operate the volunteer organization. He
stressed that community patrol nmenbers were average
community nmenbers, and were very vigilant in their efforts.

He also voiced support of funding for the Arctic Wnter
Ganes.

3:30: 08 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



RUTH KI MERE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke in
support of reinstatenent of the $3 million for tourism
mar keti ng. She remarked that tourism had a nmajor economc
inmpact to the state. She stated that tourism marketing was
essential to the tourism econony and marketplace. The state
dollars were instrunental in building business for the
smal | busi nesses, because they did not benefit from the
cruise industry in the state.

3:31:55 PM

PATRICI A FI SHER, MEADOW LAKES COVMUNITY COUNCIL, MEADOW
LAKES (via tel econference), spoke in support of funding for

the community patrols. She stated that the shortage of

troopers and linmted support for assisting in crimnal

behavi or i ntervention. She stressed t hat fi nanci al

assi stance would be well-used by the communities, because
it was solely run by vol unteers.

3:33:12 PM

BARRY ANDRES, HOUSI NG DI RECTOR, RURAL CAP, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of funding for housing
for honel ess people. He also spoke in support of funding
for substance abuse treatnent. He urged support of
reinstating the supplenental Medicaid funding.

3:35: 57 PM

HERVAN MORGAN, SELF, AN AK (via teleconference), spoke
against SB 142. He felt that there were nmany people
involved in the project who would get financial gain from
the budget. He stated that there should be an audit on the
admnistration's financial budget practices. He pointed out
that Alaska was 46th of the 50 states in education
scholastic scores. He felt that Alaska was becomng a
wel fare state.

3:39: 55 PM

JOY BAKER, DI RECTOR, NOVE PORT, JUNEAU, spoke in support of
continued developnent of the Arctic Deep Draft Port in
Nonme. She thanked the committee for the $1.6 mllion in
mat chi ng funds provided two years prior, which allowed the
Cty of Nonme to nove forward with Arny Corps on the
feasibility phase of the project.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



Senator O son wondered what would occur if the match was
not net for the port. M. Baker replied that there would be
anot her phase of delay. The project would stall, and the
nation and state would continue to fall behind in Arctic
devel opnent .

Vi ce- Chair Bishop handed the gavel to Co-Chair MacKi nnon.

3:43: 31 PM

EMLY WLLAUER, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of funding
for UA mai ntenance and facilities.

3:45:18 PM

CHRI STI NA LOVE, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of fully
funding Medicaid and $18 mllion for substance abuse
treat ment services.

3:47:52 PM

LO RICKER, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funding for public safety. She testified in
support of funding conmunity patrol. She stated that crine
and drug houses were directly related, and the comunity
knew where the drug houses were | ocat ed.

3:50: 33 PM

Senator von |nmhof asked whether she would be wlling to
sacrifice $100 of their permanent fund dividend (PFD) to
use to fund prosecutors, detox beds, state defenders,
police officers, and state troopers. M. R cker replied in
t he affirmative but stat ed t hat t here woul d be
stipul ati ons.

3:52:49 PM

LEE BREINIG CHAIR, ADVISORY OF ALCOHO. AND DRUG ABUSE
BOARD, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support
of the $18 nillion for substance use disorder treatnent
f undi ng.

3:55:14 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



MARY NANUWAK, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), felt that
there should be a focus on what the rural comunities
already contribute, r at her than telling the rura
communities what they need. She stressed that any
governnmental agency could learn from the people in the
rural communities. She encouraged the conmttee to begin to
listen to the rural communities. She remarked that it was
becom ng difficult to receive nental health and behaviora
heal th care.

4:00: 35 PM

ROBERT TERRAZAS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of tourism marketing funding. He stated
that he owns a business, and he has a background in
mar ket i ng.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.
Co- Chai r MacKi nnon thanked the testifiers.

Senator M cciche announced that testinony could always be
subnmitted el ectronically.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop announced that the comments were read by
the conmittee.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon announced that anendnents were due the
following day by noon the following day. She discussed
Fri day' s agenda.

SB 142 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
4:06:31 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:08 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 04/ 26/ 18 1:32 P. M



